ManageEngine) PAM360





Table of contents

| 3 | Introduction |
|----|---|
| 4 | What are service accounts? |
| 5 | Built-in Windows service accounts |
| | Local Service account |
| 8 | Network Service account |
| 9 | Local system account |
| 11 | What types of service accounts can be created? |
| 12 | Why are service accounts deemed critical and what are privileges in Windows service accounts? |
| 13 | Privileged access management (PAM) and service accounts |
| 15 | ManageEngine PAM360 and service account management |
| | |





Introduction

Why is it that when a computer boots, certain applications and processes start along with it by default? Or, we might wonder, have they ever stopped functioning in the first place? Typically, the system's clock, calendar, task manager, or applications like antivirus software, website browsers, or the system's AI, be it Bing, Siri, or Google, start-up along with the machine. Why does this happen, how does this happen, and is it necessary?

For starters, this is made possible by service accounts.

This white paper will dive into the intricacies surrounding service accounts and their functions in a full-scale enterprise IT network, while taking a closer look at the purpose behind its adoption.



What are service accounts?

Any soft process that runs on a computer, at its core is a service, be it applications, protocols, algorithms, etc. Services are the atoms that makeup an interactive user interface. All processes ranging from system time and calendar to network protocols and admin functions, all of them are packaged as services that are executed by user accounts. These accounts are essentially called service accounts.

Service accounts are unique, non-human user accounts that are assigned privileged access to perform background services. These services include everything that builds up to the user experience from low-level calculations, file transfers, application functions and all the way up to high-level tasks like automated administrative services, establishing virtual machine connections, and other security operations that involve critical usage.

Human user accounts vs. service accounts

Generally, for a process to run on a computer, a user is expected to login to that computer and execute the process. To do this, user accounts are created for human users to log-in to the system and execute the process.

Similarly, to run a background process that ideally does not require any user involvement, in other words a service, a service account is used. These accounts are also user accounts, but they are not accessed by human users. Service accounts tagged to particular services to automate them.



Built-in Windows service accounts

Windows services are typically managed by a central tool called the service control manager (SCM). The SCM utilizes built-in service accounts to execute these predetermined Windows services that are hard coded into the system's functionality during OS installation.

The user accounts that are used to run a service on a Windows environment are commonly known as Windows service accounts. Running in the background are numerous predesigned services that essentially make up an end-user's UI. An end user is not expected to create these service accounts themselves, especially since not all end users are technically sound enough to do so.

How do these services run and which account handles them?

To optimize a common user's UI experience, there are built-in Windows service accounts that are created during OS installation. They have different properties and they are used to execute various services. When the Windows OS is installed, by default it creates three service accounts to run background processes that don't necessarily require user intervention to run. These service accounts are not displayed on the user manager, but by default belong to the Administrators group and have access to all files within the Windows NTFS.

Local System account:

This is a built-in local service account with high-level admin privileges for that particular machine. This account does not function using eternal passwords. It utilizes the default password stored on the hard drive during OS installation. A local system account belongs to one particular system or mainframe and performs no network related services.

2 Network Service account:

This is a predefined service account used by the SCM to perform services. However, as the name suggests, a network service account is used to perform network services with its corresponding server. A service that is handled by the network service account tends to display the system's credentials on remote servers.

3 Local Service account:

This is also a predefined service account used by the SCM to perform service and functions differently form a network service account in only one way. A service performed by the local service account does not present the credentials of the computer to remote servers and requires special permissions to do so.

Let us try to understand built-in Windows service accounts with the following service examples. These examples are taken from the SCM.

ManageEngine) PAM360

Local Service account

| Windows Time | Name | Description | Status | Startup Type | Log On As | | | | |
|--|------------------------------|----------------|---------|----------------|---------------|------------------------|--|--------|-----------|
| | Windows Event Log | This service | Running | Automatic | Local Service | | | | |
| Start the service | Windows Font Cache Service | Optimizes p_ | Running | Automatic | Local Service | | | | |
| | Windows Image Acquisition | Provides ima | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local Service | | | | |
| Description: | Windows Insider Service | Provides infr_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | |
| Maintains date and time | Windows Installer | Adds. modifi_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| synchronization on all clients and | Windows License Manager S | Provides infr | Running | Manual (Trigg_ | Local Service | Windows Time Propertie | es (Local Computer) | | |
| servers in the network. If this service is stopped, date and time | Windows Management Instr | | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | |
| synchronization will be unavailable. If | Windows Management Serv_ | Performs ma_ | | Manual | Local System | General Log On Reco | General Log On Recovery Dependencies Log on as: | | |
| his service is disabled, any services | Windows Media Player Netw_ | Shares Wind_ | | Manual | Network Se_ | Log op av | | | |
| that explicitly depend on it will fail to start. | Windows Mixed Reality Ope | Enables Mix. | | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Windows Mobile Hotspot Se_ | Provides the_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local Service | C Local System account | | | |
| | Windows Modules Installer | Enables inst., | Running | Manual | Local System | Allow service to int | eract with desktop | | |
| | Windows Perception Service | Enables spat | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local Service | . This account | Local Service | 1 | Browse |
| | Windows Perception Simulat_ | Enables spat | | Manual | Local System | | | | Diombo |
| | Windows Push Notifications_ | This service r | Running | Automatic | Local System | Password: | ••••• | | |
| | Windows Push Notifications | This service | Running | Automatic | Local System | Confirm password: | | | |
| | Windows PushToInstall Servi_ | Provides infr | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | commission. | L | | |
| | Windows Remote Managem_ | Windows Re_ | | Manual | Network Se_ | | | | |
| | Windows Search | Provides con | Running | Automatic (De. | Local System | | | | |
| | Windows Security Service | Windows Se_ | Running | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | 🕰 Windows Time | Maintains d_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local Service | | | | |
| | Windows Update | Enables the _ | Running | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | |
| | Windows Update Medic Ser., | Enables rem_ | Running | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | WinHTTP Web Proxy Auto-D_ | WinHTTP im_ | Running | Manual | Local Service | | | | |
| | Wired AutoConfig | The Wired A_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | WLAN AutoConfig | The WLANS_ | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | |
| | WMI Performance Adapter | Provides per_ | Running | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Work Folders | This service _ | | Manual | Local Service | | | | i interes |
| | Workstation | Creates and _ | Running | Automatic | Network Se_ | | OK | Cancel | App |
| | WWAN AutoConfig | This service _ | | Manual | Local System | 1 | | | |
| | Kbox Accessory Managemen_ | This service | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | |
| | Abox Live Auth Manager | Provides aut_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Abox Live Game Save | This service | | Manual (Trigg | Local System | | | | |
| | Abox Live Networking Service | This service | | Manual | Local System | | | | |

As the description reads, this particular service called Windows Time maintains the date and time synchronization across all servers in the network. This service may require communicating with other machines in the network to provide the accurate time according to the server, it but does not require sharing of credentials. This service is handled by a local service account.



Network Service account

| emote Desktop Services | Name | Description | Status | Startup Type | Log On As | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|-----------------|---------|-----------------|---------------|--|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------|--|
| | A Phone Service | Manages th | | Manual (Trigg | Local Service | | | | |
| top the service estart the service | Plug and Play | Enables a co | Running | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| estart the service | Agent PMP Agent | | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | |
| | Rep Machine Name Public. | This service _ | | Manual | Local Service | | _ | | |
| escription: | Portable Device Enumerator _ | Enforces gro_ | Running | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | Remote Desktop Serv | io | ices Properties (Local Computer | |
| llows users to connect interactively a remote computer. Remote | Power | Manages po_ | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | |
| esktop and Remote Desktop Session | Print Spooler | This service _ | Running | Automatic | Local System | General Log On Re | General Log On Recovery Dependencies | | |
| ost Server depend on this service. | Reprinter Extensions and Notifi_ | This service _ | | Manual | Local System | Lon on as | Log on as: | | |
| o prevent remote use of this | PrintWorkflow_68656e1 | Provides sup_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | |
| omputer, clear the checkboxes on he Remote tab of the System | Problem Reports Control Pa_ | This service _ | | Manual | Local System | Local System account | | | |
| roperties control panel item. | Program Compatibility Assis | This service _ | Running | Manual | Local System | Allow service to | n | interact with desktop | |
| | Quality Windows Audio Vid_ | Quality Win_ | | Manual | Local Service | This account | | Network Service | |
| | Radio Management Service | Radio Mana_ | Running | Manual | Local Service | | | | |
| | Realtek Audio Universal Serv_ | Realtek Audi_ | Running | Automatic | Local System | Password: | | ••••• | |
| | Recommended Troubleshoo_ | Enables aut_ | | Manual | Local System | Confirm password: | Ĩ | | |
| | Remote Access Auto Connec | Creates a co | | Manual | Local System | comm paramone. | | | |
| | Remote Access Connection | Manages di_ | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | |
| | Remote Desktop Configurati_ | Remote Des_ | Running | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Remote Desktop Services | Allows users | Running | Manual | Network Se_ | | | | |
| | Remote Desktop Services Us | Allows the re_ | Running | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Remote Procedure Call (RPC) | The RPCSS s_ | Running | Automatic | Network Se_ | | | | |
| | Remote Procedure Call (RPC)_ | In Windows _ | | Manual | Network Se_ | | | | |
| | Remote Registry | Enables rem_ | | Disabled | Local Service | | | | |
| | Retail Demo Service | The Retail D_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Routing and Remote Access | Offers routi | | Disabled | Local System | | | | |
| | RPC Endpoint Mapper | Resolves RP_ | Running | Automatic | Network Se_ | | | | |
| | Secondary Logon | Enables start_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | |
| | Secure Socket Tunneling Pro_ | Provides sup_ | Running | Manual | Local Service | | | OK Cano | |
| | Security Accounts Manager | The startup _ | Running | Automatic | Local System | 1 | _ | | |
| | Security Center | The WSCSVC_ | Running | Automatic (De_ | Local Service | | | | |
| | Sensor Data Service | Delivers dat_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | |
| | Sensor Monitoring Service | Monitors va_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local Service | | | | |
| | Sensor Service | A service for _ | | Manual (Trigg | Local System | | | | |
| | Server . | Supports file_ | Running | Automatic (Tri_ | Local System | | | | |

The service Remote Desktop Services authorizes remote desktop connections to and from the respective machine. This is managed by a network service account (refer to the image above) because it requires access to the network and directly works with the computer's credentials.

ManageEngine) PAM360

Local system account

| Services (Local) | | | | | No. | | | | | | |
|--|---------------------------------|-----------------|---------|----------------|---------------|--|--|--------------|--|--|--|
| Device Association Service | Name | Description | Status | Startup Type | Log On As | | | | | | |
| Stop the service | COM+ Event System | Supports Sy_ | Running | Automatic | Local Service | | | | | | |
| Restart the service | COM+ System Application | Manages th_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Connected Devices Platform _ | This service i_ | | Automatic (De_ | Local Service | | | | | | |
| | Connected Devices Platform _ | | Running | Automatic | Local System | Davies Association For | vice Properties (Local Compu | er) X | | | |
| Description: Enables pairing between the system | Connected User Experiences | | Running | Automatic | Local System | Device Association Ser | vice Properties (Local Compu | er) x | | | |
| and wired or wireless devices. | ConsentUX_68656e1 | Allows Conn_ | | Manual | Local System | General Log On Red | overy Dependencies | | | | |
| | Contact Data_68656e1 | Indexes cont_ | | Manual | Local System | and the second s | | | | | |
| | CoreMessaging | Manages co | Running | Automatic | Local Service | Log on as: | | | | | |
| | Credential Manager | Provides sec_ | Running | Manual | Local System | Local System account | Local System account | | | | |
| | CredentialEnrollmentManag_ | Credential E_ | | Manual | Local System | □ Allow service to in | Allow service to interact with desktop | | | | |
| | CrowdStrike Falcon Sensor S., | Helps protec | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Cryptographic Services | Provides thr | Running | Automatic | Network Se_ | O This account: | | Biroyesa | | | |
| | Data Sharing Service | Provides dat | Running | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | Password | | | | | |
| | Oata Usage | Network dat | Running | Automatic | Local Service | 1 GENTER | | | | | |
| | COM Server Process Launc | The DCOML_ | Running | Automatic | Local System | Confirm password | | | | | |
| | C desve | Declared Co | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Delivery Optimization | Performs co_ | Running | Automatic (De. | Network Se_ | | | | | | |
| | Dell Client Management Ser | Enables Dell _ | Running | Automatic (De. | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Q Dell Free Fall Data Protectio | | Running | Automatic | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Device Association Service | Enables pairi_ | Running | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Children Device Install Service | Enables a co_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Device Management Enroll_ | Performs De. | | Manual | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Character Management Wireles | Routes Wirel_ | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Cevice Setup Manager | Enables the | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | | | |
| | DeviceAssociationBroker_68_ | Enables app | | Manual | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Q DevicePicker_68656e1 | This user ser | | Manual | Local System | | | | | | |
| | DevicesFlow_68656e1 | Allows Conn_ | | Manual | Local System | | OK Can | A CONTRACTOR | | | |
| | DevQuery Background Disc. | Enables app | Running | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | OK Can | cel Amply | | | |
| | CHCP Client | Registers an_ | Running | Automatic | Local Service | P- | | | | | |
| | Chagnostic Execution Service | Executes dia | | Manual (Trigg_ | Local System | | | | | | |
| | Chagnostic Policy Service | The Diagnos_ | Running | Automatic | Local Service | | | | | | |
| | Characteristic Service Host | The Diagnos_ | Running | Manual | Local Service | | | | | | |
| | Can Diagnostic System Host | The Diagnos_ | | Manual | Local System | | | | | | |
| | CalogBlockingService | Dialog Block_ | | Disabled | Local System | | | | | | |
| Extended / Standard / | Actes in | | | 44 1.07. | 1 10 1 | | | | | | |

The Device Association Service enables the system to connect to wired and wireless devices. This service works only with the particular machine it is assigned to and needs no network permissions or network access. Therefore, it is assigned to the built-in local system account.



But apart from these built-in service accounts...

Users can create custom Windows service accounts and register them in the Active Directory to assign service to them.

Why though?

This is made possible, because the built-in service accounts are managed by the operating system and by default are tagged to all systems running the Windows OS. External service accounts are created to distribute services selectively to the Windows resources of a network environment.

New service accounts need to be created to add a security context to the services in the Windows OS. This security context refers to the service's permission to access resources, and the user's permission to manage these services.

To simplify, if a new service account is created, it can be used to target specific resources of an organization to perform selective services such as password reset, or other custom actions. Additionally, by creating new service accounts in the Active Directory, an admin can limit the number of users who can manage that particular service account.

Therefore, enterprises favor creating service accounts to assign special privileges to maintain the security needs the service demands due to their crucial functions.

ManageEngine

What types of service accounts can be created?

Any created Windows service account is always created in a domain controller, or any machine that has access to the Active Directory. There are two types of service accounts: managed service accounts and domain user accounts. Both of these service accounts can only be attached to individual machines and are more or less similar but also somewhat different.

A domain user account works similar to a local user account, but it is created in a domain controller. It is used to access network services and interact with domain resources for services like file sharing, registry access, and directory services. This is a privileged service account that can be accessed by a human administrator to update passwords periodically.

It is assigned privileges, but only for those particular services this account is attached to. In general terms, a domain user account works the same way as a local human user account, but with privileges that limit its accessibility to services alone.

A managed service account (MSA) is a highly privileged service account and no human user interacts with it. Passwords for these service accounts are updated automatically. It is mandated that the passwords of these service accounts don't expire, because generally these service accounts deal with critical services. There are two types of MSAs: standalone managed service accounts (sMSA) and group managed service accounts (gMSA).

An sMSA is used to automate services across devices in the same server. However, a gMSA is used to perform services in machines across multiple servers, but the machines should belong to a common server farm or they should be distributed by a common load balancer.

ManageEngine

Why are service accounts deemed critical and what are privileges in Windows service accounts?

Service accounts in general deal with multiple services that run on various machines at the same time. If one service account fails, it would disrupt all services attached to that account. The damage doesn't stop there. It also scathingly disrupts all service dependent on the services attached to the actual account, resulting in a cascading system failure throughout the organization.

In the case of human user accounts, an admin account has more privileges than a normal user account. According to these varying privileges assigned to them, their levels of access to information within the network will also differ.

Similarly, service accounts also have privileges assigned to them and this privilege assignment defines the service account's access to information within the enterprise network.

Highly privileged service accounts typically handle critical services like establishing remote connections, password vaulting, password reset, etc. Ideally high-level privileges are assigned to service accounts are for services that deal with the security of the system or the network. On the other hand, low-level privileges are assigned to service accounts that deal with distributive services like software updates, file transfers, and patch releases.

Privileged access management (PAM) and service accounts

Any privileged account, especially service accounts need to be secured and managed vigilantly. Single service accounts are widely used to run multiple services at multiple machines throughout an enterprise. A disruption of that account will lead to downtime of multiple applications that the particular service is responsible for performing.

Outdated practices include saving passwords of such service accounts in spreadsheets, text files, and other non-encrypted locations. This leaves room for mass mismanagement of service account credentials which could lead to crippling effects on the network.

Given that a single service account usually delivers multiple services across multiple machines, a disturbed service account will result in widespread disturbances across the network.

To avoid such instances, it is advisable to follow PAM practices that enable organizations to secure service accounts effectively.

In the context of service accounts, some PAM best practices include:



Storing service account credentials in a secure vault:

Discovering service accounts and automatically adding them to a password vault will help the organization to keep track of all functional services and their respective accounts in the vault.



Periodically resetting service account passwords:

Periodic password reset is a mandatory requirement while dealing with service accounts. However, while configuring automatic password reset, never let passwords expire for service accounts since service accounts are critical privileged accounts. Letting a service account password expire is more or less similar to compromising the account since, in both cases, the result is the same: mass failure of services.



Centrally managing service account credentials across the network:

Managing service account credentials centrally, will keep them aware of the number of services tagged to each account, which service accounts run on which domain, when their passwords are due for reset, etc.

These service account management best practices, when incorporated into an enterprise solution are, in effect a PAM solution.

This brings us to our in-house privileged access management solution: PAM360.

ManageEngine PAM360 and service account management

PAM360, as an enterprise solution, specializes in service account management best practices and implements these as its gold standard. Using PAM360, organizations can discover, secure, manage, and centrally automate the regulation of privileged service account credentials.

Thanks to ManageEngine's all-around IT solutions suite, PAM360 provides various integration opportunities, crafted to function in an enterprise IT infrastructure and to reduce the complications that surround service account management.

We now arrive at the end of this exploration with the answers to the same questions as when we began.

Service accounts are responsible for holding an IT network together and should be prioritized as the most critical privileged accounts in a network. Service accounts form the crux of the computer's user interface and are the foundation of a network's presence.

ManageEngine PAM360

www.manageengine.com/pam360